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AND DRUGS: s Buisman's Famous Dutch Flavoring

ADULTERATION: ‘ creates, whén blended with coffee
MISBRANDING: - s beans, an adulterated product
MISLABELING: : whose sale is prohibited by Sec,

BUTSMAN 'S

FAMOUS DUTCH FLAVORI'NG: 196.015(1),‘1and the distribution
‘ . to consumers of Bulsman's Pamous

5

Jefferson
Dear Sirt

F l LE D 4 Dutch Flavoring (as presently

labeled) is the sale of a mis- ,
branded product, the sale of which
is prohibited by the same section.

)r, James R. |Amos December 1, 1955
‘Division of Health

Gity, Missourd

The following opinion is rendered in reply to your inguiry

which resads as follows:

*We have embargoed a stock of coffee extender
which is labeled in part ‘Buisman's Flavoring'.
We think that the product is misbraended in ac-
cordance with Section 196.075, Ghapter 196,
Revised &tataﬁ@s,rxissauri,lﬁﬁ-,4aﬁﬁfﬁﬁat the

use of this product in coffee sold In a restaurant
or in any type of & public eating establishment

congtitutes adulteration, and is a violation of

Section 196.070, Chapter 196, Revised Statutes,
Missouri 1949. o L

"1t 48 our ﬁhd&rstanéin‘ that there)h&& been an

Arkansas Supreme Court Decision which permitted

the sale of 'Buisman‘s Flavering' in Arkansas,

‘and that there has been a State of Washington

Attorney General's Opinion which permitted the

sale of 'Buisman‘s Flavoring' in the state of
Washington. Therefore, we would like to know

if we have taken proper action by embargoing

- this product.  We would like to lmow 1f we can

prohibit the sale of this product in the state
of Missouri under ites present label in accordance

 with Section 196.075, Chapter 196, Revised

Statutues, Missowi 1949, and can we prohibit

the sale of goffee in institutions, restaurants,
and other public eating establishments as being
adulterated under Section 196,070, Chapter 196,

Revised Btatutues, Missouri 19497



Dr, James R. Amos

e would appr&aiaﬁe 1t if you would give us
‘an official Opinion canaeraing 'Buiaman*s
‘Flavoring!. ,

Buigman's Famous Dutoh Flavering (hereinaftar Buiaman's)
has been manurantured since 1867 and sold widely throughout
Burope and the British Empive. In 1950 it was introéueed into
the American market, being distributed at first in California.
Its 1ngraé1enta, ‘caramelized gtareh and caleium phosphate, are A
not in themselves noxious, and no one has contended that the use of
Buisman's Jeopardizes health_ Labeling, which includes all ac~
oampanying liﬁerature, asserﬁs bha fellawing:

',}"Ineraaaes sne yield ‘of your ravarite coffee."
" ‘“"save up to one-half on coffee."
"Make your ¢offee taste beetev - go furtner.“
"Double the yield." ‘ e

A mamorandum, cireulated by its distributers, atatea, in faat,
that "if Buisman‘s ig blended with roasted coffee, per direc-
tions, on a 5% basis, then oné need use the blend in only one~

half thé « qua 153} y that one would usa of straight coffee, and get

a very satisfactory oup of coffee." The nature of such claims

led the Bureau of Food and Drugs to prehibit the sale of Buisman's
in Missouri to restaurants, coffee shops, and Lnstituﬁiens which

mix Bulsman's with qoffee beans and sell the blend as "coffee."

The Bureau has also stated that Builsman's may not be sold tc

housewives unlesa ‘more preperly labeled as an "extender"”
"stretcher'" rather than as a "flavoring."  The Bureau charges,

in short, that the beverage composed of Buisman's and coffee is

an adulterated product, and that Buisman's Flavoring is misbranded,

under the fellawing statutes: R

Section 196.015. “The following aets and the
causingthereof within the state of MIEScuri
are heraby prehibited:

“(1) The manufacture, sale, or delivery,
heldin§ or offering for sale of any food, ,

evice, or cosmetic that is adulberabed
or miabranded; .

"(2) The sdulteration or misbranding of any
food, drug, device, or cosmetic; * & !

Section 196.070: "A food shall be deemed to
be adulterated: ’ ‘
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Dr. James R. Amos

"{10) If any substance has been added thereta
or mixed or packed therewith go as ﬁq”inerease
its bulk or weight, or reduce It§ Guallt:
BErength oF maxe 1t appear better or of greater
value than it 1s; ® (Emphasia supplied )

~Seetien 196. 975 ”A fesd ahall be d&emed to. ;

~ be misbrandsdx

| ﬁ”{l) Ir its 1abeun§ ‘135,:‘a3.-sa* an ,misiéadmg"m
: any particular; * ¥ : T

Buisman's ehief aﬁeraction is tha alleviatien ef that pres-
sure on the family budget produced by the rapid rise in the price
of coffee, As a Bulsman's circular points cut{ "one pound of
‘roasted coffee plus about 10¢ worth of Bulsman's . brews up to
twice as many aupa.v It is apparent that the sale of a beverage
composed of Buisman's and coffee satisfies not only the statutory
definition of adulteration, but also the definition advanced by
the Missourl Supreme Court in City ef St Louis v. Beda Jud, 139
8.W. 483, 336 Mo. 1, at page 6y

"Attending to that s%abute it daals not enly
with fereign substances or preservatives in-
Jurious to health, but goes on to denounce
'adulterateé' milk. ‘Adulterate,' means to

: 1p débase, or make impure by an admixtuve
of a foreign or baser substance. (Web. Tit.
'Adulterate.') That standard work illustrates
the application of the word. It states that
articles are adulterated 'to improve or change
their appearance or flavor in imitation of an
article of higher grade or of a different kind,!
Adulteration is a ‘treatment to simulate a
better article’--an 'artificial ecncealment
of defects,'"

If the &dvertising claims are true, adulteratien is clear;
if such claims are false, a forticri, the product is misbranded.
Since we assume the advertisements to sbate correctly Buisman's
attributes, we are compelled to hold that its mixture with coffee
beans would produge an adulterated product, the aale of which is
prohibited by Missouri law, .

The opinion of the Attorney General of washington, where the
same product and an identical statute were involved, does not,
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of courge, escape our attenticn. See COH Food, Drug, Cosmetic -
Law Reports, Seetion’ 85, 146, In his opinion the Aftorney General

concluded that Buisman's could legally be gold in Washington. The

Attorney General noted, however, that there was uncontradlcoted
testimony at a hearing. to the effect that Buisman's did not inw
erease coffee bulk or weight (nmtwi%hatanding ‘the advertising
claims) and, consequently, he felt obliged to hold that, upon
the raets with which he was presented, no adulberatian existed;

In attempting 6 aunstrue correat the Missauri atatute,
we may examine the federal cases under the Fedéral Food, Drug
and Cosmetioc Act; the model after which Missourl patterned its
legislation.* It should be noted, of course, that the defini-
tions of adulteration and misbranding in ‘the Missouri act are
aimilar to those in” the f&&eral aet." .

' Mp, Chief Justice Stene, diseussing the federal law, stated
in Federal Security Administrator v.' Quaker Oats Company, 318 v.s.
218, at page 230, 63 8. Ct. 589 (19#3)

e "Bath the text and 1egislative history of the

' present statute plainly show that 1ts purpose

" “was not confined to a requirement of truth-
ful and infoymative labeling. False and mis-
leading labeling had been prohibited by the
Pure Food and DPrug Act of 1906. But it was
found that such a prohibition was inadequate
to proteet the consumer from ‘economic adultera-~ .
tion,! by which less expensive ingredients were

~ substituted, or the proportion of more ex-
pensive 1ngr@dients diminished, so as %o
make the product, although not in itself

- deleterious, inferior to that which the cone-
sumer expected to receive when purchasing a
product with ﬁhe name under whieh it was
seld L * ,

-~ -

* 21 U.8.C.A., sea,v342,j_""A food ghall be deemed to be adulter~

ated~-(b)(4) If any substance hag
beeri added thereto or mixed or packed:
therewith so as to increage its bulk
or welght, or reduce its quality or

- gtrength, or make it appear better or
of graater value than it is."
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In regard to the “economic. adulteratien“ seotions of the federal
law, see, in addition, U.8. v. 716 Cases, More or less, ete. = -
Del Comida Blend Tamataes, 1(9 F. 24 174 (mtn eir., 1950.)

L This beverage whose ingvedients are Buisman's ané eaffee
beans, is to be sold under. the nameé of "coffee," And yet, in
¥.8. v. 0. P. Bayer and Company, 188 r.2d 555 (and Civ. 1951),
the court stated, at page: 557, that: : :

"".r . . it is common knowledge of which a
- eourt may take' judicial notlee, that the
Cdrink called 'eaffee' is made from reasted
coffee beans."

. &s sat forth in United States v. 88 cases, Mare or Lass,
Containing Bireley's Orange Beverage, 187 F.2d 967 (3rd Cir.
1951), two conditions must be met in showing a violation af the
federal definitiaa of adulteration: '

1. That a food exists superior to, and com-
: parahla-ta,'the alleged adulterated foeod;

2, ?hét the éver&ge consumer would be eaaily
deceived into thinking the alleged adul-
ﬁerateé food is the superior food.

On the facts before us, we belleve that "coffes as defined in
U.8. v. ©. F. Bayer and Company (supra), is that food to which

8 mixture of Buisman's and coffee beang may be compared, and that
it is the superior food made only of roasted coffee beans which
meets the second prerequiaite .

We are aware that the recent case of Austin v. Gﬁnea, 278

8.W, 2d 93, conatrulng a statute identical to Missouri's, holds
that Buisman's may legally be sold in Arkansas. Thls case atemmed
from a suit to .enjoin the Director of Food and Drug Division of
the Arkansas Board of Health from interfering with the sale and
distribution of Buisman®s. The Supreme Court of Arkansas, afe
rirmig the injunction -granted by the lower court, stated, at
page 951 : 4 <

YPhe weakness in appellant's contention is

in the faet that there is nelther a standard
por a definition for what 1s to be contained
in the 1liquid composing & cup of coffee. The
mest recently published revision of the Rules
and Regulationa of the Arkansas State Board of
Health was issued in 1952; and it has nothing
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“eovering the point at issue. Sec. 19 of Act
415 is the general section ﬁiiéwiﬂsugtﬁﬁulﬁa*
_ tion of regulations; but no new regulations
“have yet been issued under the Act 415, Sea,
9 of the Ast 415 gives the State Board of
Health the power to '* *# * promulgate regulaw
~ tions fixing and establishing for any food or
. elass of food a reasonable definition and standard
 of identity, and/or reasonable standard of quality
and/or £ill of container. In preagribing a defini-
tion and standard of identity for any food or class
- of food in which optional ingredients are permitted,
~ the Board of Health shall, for the purpose of pro-
- moting honesty and falr dealing in the interest of
~ consumers, designate the optional ingredients which
‘8hall be named on the label. # #* #!' Put we know
. Judieially that the State Board-of Health has
- not lesued any definition or standard of identity
for the liquid in a cup of coffee.

- 996, was & case invelving food adulteration;
and we resorted to the dictionary definition
for. ‘bolognat, 'wiener,' ! frankfurter! and
'hamburger', But we cannot resort to the
dictionary definition of coffee as a liquid
gerved in 8 cup, because Thé diotionaries

c‘ogntalin e varigty of such definitions, * #"

“# # # In ghort, neither the dietionary nor
common usage afford us any definition or
standard as to what 18 supposed to be con-
tained in the liquid coffee served in the
cup. Furthermore the strength of the liquid
coffee gerved in the cup varies greatly as to

individual tastes. .

"In the light of all these variables, and until
the State Board of Health issues regulations
fixing and establishing a peasonable defini-
tion and standard of identity for the liquid
coffee seérved in the cup, it is not fair to
say that Bulsman's ~- 8 haimless ingredlent «-
cannot be gold as & separate product to be
added by the purchaser, if so desired, to
make the liquid coffee, #All liquid coffee

is an adulteration of water in one gense of
the word, and the adding of Buismant's-if
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known-«18 no more an adulteration of wate?
than the ground eoffee is 1$se1r an adulbera~
~ tion of wahaﬁ. o . |

Mntil sueh tima as. the state Beard ef Healﬁh,
acting under Sec. 9. of the Aet 415, duly issues
regulations f£ixing and establishing a standard:
of identity and quality for the liquid contained

- in a cup of coffee as s0ld in this State, we:n
cannot gay that the adding of Buismants is an
'&dmlberatien; and. likewise we cannot say that -

- Buisman's is misbrénded becsuse the label statea
exactly what 1t 1s and there i1s no law that fixes
tha standard of the praduet to. whieh it is added.»

uarely appased to thia Arkansas deeision is Unit d States v,
Drums of Pop'n 011, 164 F.2d4 250 (5%h Cir. 1947) in whieh the
eeuvt gtated clearly, at page 252, that application of the adul~
teration sections 18 not dependent upon the priar premnlgatiaﬁ
of a definition or stendard sf identity.

"Even .in the: abaenee of a reasonable defini-
tion and standard of identity, promulgated
under 21 U.8.0.A. Sec. 341, truthful labeling
does not exempt an article from the provisions
of 21 U.5.C.A. Sec 3&2 (b) (3) and (4), » » »
“In the 1n$tant ease, ‘mineral oil has been
artifically colored and flavored to make 1t
look like butter or vegetsble oil. That
- minerasl oil is inferior to melted butter on
papeorn is plain, It is also inferior to

ecocoanut, soybean, or cotton-seed oil, To
conclude that a food for which a standard of
identity has not been promulgated 1s exempt
from the economic adulteration provisions of

- the Act would result in rendering inoperative

. all of 21 U.S.C,.A. Sec. 342 b The Administra-

© - tor is not required to pramulgate definitions
and standards of identity for foods under any
and all eonditions, Administrative selectivity
in such standardization is a part of his discre-~
tion and responalbility. To permit a class of
foods not so selected to escape other applicable
provisions of the law would ereate a loophole
which the Act sought to aveid,'

-»-7'-!-
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The average consumer ef %:) Buisman's and coffee bean blend
would be unaware that he was drinking a beverage inferior to
that which he thought that he had ardered It must again be
emphasized that 8 necessary ‘fastor in showing adulteration is
not that the added product was deleterious, but that &) less
expensive ingredient had been substituted for roasted coffee
beans. It seems to us that Missouri statutory and case law
defining adulteration, reinforced by federal deelslions, would
be violated by restauranta', coffee shops?, and institutions'
mixing thia produet wiﬁh aaffee beans dand seliing the final
blend as aeffee., : _ ‘

IIr

in de%ermining whether this praduce 18 miabvanded, ‘we must
keep clearly in mind that one purpose of the Missouri statute
is to prevent injury to the publie by prohibiting the sale of
products whieh are not completely and truthfully labeled. The
consumer ig entitled to assurance that an article which he buys
és g§§t ig punparts to be, and‘naﬁhing else. See Section 196,610
s 0

Printed en a one peund container of Buisman'a ave the folw
lowing words: o

“Buisman's Famous Dutch Flavoring.
Mix with your favorite brand of coffee
for deliclous flavar.

"HOW TO USE AND SAVE MONEY .

*196.010 2, “1f an article is alleged to be misbranded because
- the labeling is misleading, then in determining
- whetheér the labeling 1s misleading, there shall be
taken into account, among other things, not only
representations made or suggested by statement,
word, design, devige, sound, or in any combination
thereef but also the extent o whiech the labelin

fails to to Teveal Tasts material in the Light of suc
rEpresentations oF MALerial wiﬁE‘besgge-#*e conBe~

guences whieh may result from The uige of the arEiele
to which the 1a Exlin Telates under the eonditions
o Use préseribed In the la e,ing thereof or under
guch conditions of use as are customary or usual,
(Emphasis supplied.)
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CMLx h/s oz. (ona rounded tablespaan)‘;
Yo gf Buisman's Famous Duteh Flavering
- ‘with ONE IB. of roasted coffee or mix.
o ONB LB (eantehts of this tin} with
C O PWENTY LB, of rossted coffee; plend. .
o thoroughly in a- cantainer with plenty~;
oo of shaking spaae;_ﬁi - .

é’?“ﬁaa this mixture in any strangﬁh de- - .
sired aaeording o taate. ,

“eeamms No . eemms NO
4 mrzeay emfmm

'?'“Impartant: Tﬁ reta&n the flaver re-
~ place 1id TTHHTEY‘and keep in & DRY o
- place. If contents forms (sic) a orust,
' this is a normal condition and does not
~affect the purity of the produet. It
should be mixed in powder farm and erushed
with a apaan 1f naeessary.

Admitteély, this particular 1abe1 dcaa not asaert that the praﬁucc
may extend or stretch & pound of coffee, The term "labeling" (by
whish a product may be misbranded) is dafined, however, in Sec~
tion 196, mo(le) 19149, as:

.. all labela and other written,
printed, or graphic matter upon any
article or any of 1ts eontalners or _
ﬁrapp%rs, or sccompanying such article;

Aaaertiana that Bulsman'’s may be used as an “"extender" or
"atreteher” can be found in many examples of its labeling. (See
p. 2, supra.) The words found on the one pound container do not,
thus, state the entire story which & consumer deserves 0 know
before buying. Taking such c¢lalms as correct, and to do other~
wise would be to accuse Bulisman's of deliberately falsifying its
advertising, we are - c@nstrainad te hold that Buisman's is sold
primarily as an "extender" or “"stretcher." Buisman's distribubtors
do not emphasize the flavor to be derived from mixing Buisman's
with coffee, but rather stress the monétary savings to be
effectuated by such blending. We belleve that the real applica-
bility of Buisman's "flavoring" should be clearly indlcated to
the buying public, and that use of the words "extender" or

"stretcher" would more nearly meet this requirement than does
the pregent labeling.
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CONCLUSION

- It 1is, therefore, the opinion of this office that Bulsman's
Famous Dutch Flavoring creates, when hlended with coffee beans, =
en adulterated product whose sale is prohibited by Section 196.015
(1), and that the distribution to consumers of Bulsman's Pamous
Duteh Flavoring (as preSently~1abeledl is the sale of a misbranded
product, the sale of which is prohibited by the same seetion. -

' The foregoing Qpihian¢lﬁ§i¢h.I»hereﬁy,appréve,‘was-prépared-’
by myﬁaaa@gtant,,Walker.na.gﬁgnerie, Jr.. o TR

Yours very truly,

John M. Dalton
Attorney General

WhaBivliwihw




